THE SUPREME COURT OF FLO	ORIDA O
CASE NO. DCA NO. 88-1649	$\sqrt{4}$
RANDY B. BROWN,	
Petitioner,	UUL 1 SCOO
-vs-	
THE STATE OF FLORIDA,	Deposit section
Respondent.	

ON APPLICATION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW

IN

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

BENNETT H. BRUMMER Public Defender Eleventh Judicial Circuit of Florida 1351 N.W. 12th Street Miami, Florida 33125 (305) 545-3078

ROBERT BURKE Assistant Public Defender Florida Bar No. 434493

Counsel for Petitioner

INTRODUCTION

The Petitioner, Randy B. Brown, was the appellant in the Third District Court of Appeal and the defendant in the trial court. The Respondent, the State of Florida, was the appellee in the Third District Court of Appeal and the plaintiff in the trial court. The symbol "A." will be used to refer to the appendix attached hereto.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

In sentencing Randy Brown, the trial judge departed from the sentencing guidelines range, announcing oral reasons (A. 2-3), but failing to provide any written reasons for the departure. (A. 1). The Third District Court of Appeal issued an opinion reversing the sentence which simply stated "we remand the cause for resentencing". (A. 1). The court cited the case of <u>Padgett v.</u> <u>State</u>, 534 So.2d 1246 (Fla. 3d DCA 1988) in which the Third District, addressing a single sentencing issue, reversed a departure sentence and remanded to allow the trial court to supply written reasons for the departure. (A. 1).

Petitioner Brown moved for clarification or rehearing, taking the position that the cause had to be remanded for resentencing within the guidelines. (A. 4-6). While the motion for clarification or rehearing was pending, this court issued its opinion in <u>Pope v. State</u>, 15 F.L.W. 243 (Fla. April 26, 1990), which held that when an appellate court reverses a departure sentence because there are no written reasons given, it must remand for resentencing within the guidelines. Petitioner Brown filed <u>Pope</u> as a notice of supplemental authority in the Third District Court of Appeal. (A. 7-9). The Third District denied the motion for rehearing on the sentencing guidelines issue. (A. 10).

-2-

QUESTION PRESENTED

WHETHER THE DECISION OF THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL CONFLICTS WITH THE FOLLOWING DECISION OF THIS COURT ON REVERSAL AND REMAND OF SENTENCES DEPARTING FROM THE GUIDELINES: <u>POPE V. STATE</u>, 15 F.L.W. 243 (Fla. April 26, 1990)?

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

In <u>Pope v. State</u>, 15 FLW 243, 244 (Fla. April 26, 1990) this court held that when an appellate court reverses a departure sentence because there were no written reasons, the court must remand for resentencing with no possibility of departure from the guidelines. Here, the Third District Court of Appeal reversed because there were no written reasons for departure, but simply remanded for resentencing. In doing so the court cited a case which authorized the articulation of written reasons upon remand. Appellant's motion for rehearing, with <u>Pope</u> cited in a notice of supplemental authority, was denied. The decision of the Third District, by failing to remand for resentencing <u>within the guide-</u> <u>lines</u>, expressly and directly conflicts with <u>Pope</u>.

ARGUMENT

THE DECISION OF THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL CONFLICTS WITH THE FOLLOWING DECISION OF THIS COURT ON REVERSAL AND REMAND OF SEN-TENCES DEPARTING FROM THE GUIDELINES: <u>POPE V.</u> STATE, 15 F.L.W. 243 (Fla. April 26, 1990).

In Pope v. State, 15 F.L.W. 243, 244 (Fla. April 26, 1990) this court said:

Applying the principles of Jackson[, 478 So. 1054, 1055 (Fla. 1985)] and Shull[, 515 So.2d 748 (Fla. 1987)], and for the same policy reasons, we hold that when an appellate court reverses a departure sentence because there were no written reasons, the court <u>must</u> remand for resentencing with no possibility of departure from the guidelines. (emphasis supplied).

In this case, the Third District acknowledged in its opinion that the trial court had "failed to give written reasons for departing from the sentencing guidelines", <u>Slip opinion</u>, at 1, but simply remanded for resentencing, citing a case which stood for the proposition that the trial court is authorized to provide the missing written reasons upon remand. (A. 1). The court did so despite the fact that petitioner had requested, on motion for clarification and rehearing, that the trial court be directed to resentence him within the guidelines, and despite the fact that this court's decision in <u>Pope</u> had been filed as a notice of supplemental authority.¹ (A. 4-9).

^{1.} In Hoffman v. Jones, 280 So.2d 431, 434 (Fla. 1973), this court held that district courts of appeal are bound to follow case law set forth by the Supreme Court of Florida. In Lowe v. Price, 437 So.2d 142, 144 (Fla. 1983) this court held that decisional law in effect at time of an appeal governs the case. Therefore, since Pope was in effect before Brown's appeal was finally disposed, the Third District Court of Appeal was required (Cont'd)

By failing to direct that petitioner be resentenced within the guidelines, the Third District Court of Appeal's decision in this case expressly and directly conflicts with this court's decision in Pope. Indeed, other defendants in exactly the same position as Brown, whose motion for rehearing was denied on May 22, 1990, are receiving the benefit of this court's decision in Pope. Compare, Davis v. State, 15 F.L.W. 1282, 1283 (Fla. 3d DCA May 8, 1990) (remanding for resentencing within the guidelines on the authority of Pope); Grant v. State, 15 F.L.W. 1284 (Fla. 3d DCA May 8, 1990) (same). To allow the Third District's decision to stand will deny Brown his state and federal constitutional rights to equal protection of the law.² U.S. Const. Art. IV, §1; Art. I, §§2, 9, Fla. Const. See, Mitchell v. State, 157 Fla. 121, 25 So.2d 73 (1946) (prosecution by method which denies defendant benefit of the statute of limitations while others guilty of same offense receive benefit of limitations period denies equal protection). Cf. Seattle Times Co. v. Rhinehart, 467 U.S. 20, 104 S.Ct. 2199, 81 L.Ed.2d 17 (1984) (subjecting a court order to First Amendment scrutiny and affirming Rhinehart v. Seattle Times Co., 98 Wash.2d 226, 654 P.2d 673 (1982), which affirmed the

to follow <u>Pope</u>, grant Brown's motion for rehearing, and direct that he be resentenced within the guidelines.

2.

This petition for review is necessary, and relief for petitioner imperative, because (a) Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.330(b) precludes further review of the issue by the Third District Court of Appeal, and (b) since the issue was presented and decided in the motion for rehearing, it would constitute law of the case. <u>See</u>, Love v. State, 15 F.L.W. 73 (Fla. February 15, 1990); <u>see also</u>, 3 Fla. Jur.2d <u>Appellate</u> Review §421 (1978).

-6-

court order on the ground that the discovery sought would infringe on constitutionally protected rights of privacy, religion, and association); <u>South Florida Blood Service v. Rasmussen</u>, 467 So.2d 798, 803 (Fla. 3d DCA 1985) (court orders may constitute state action subject to constitutional limitation), <u>approved</u> 500 So.2d 533 (Fla. 1987). Therefore, petitioner requests that this court exercise its conflict jurisdiction and review the case.

CONCLUSION

Based on the cases and authorities cited herein, the petitioner requests this court to accept jurisdiction in this cause.