04/2

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 76,100

RANDY B. BROWN,

Petitioner,

vs.

SID J. WHITE

JUN 22 1990

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

CHARLES M. FAHLBUSCH
Florida Bar #0191948
Assistant Attorney General
Department of Legal Affairs
Florida Regional Service Center
401 N.W. 2nd Avenue, Suite N-921
Miami, Florida 33128
(305) 377-5441

INTRODUCTION

The Petitioner, RANDY B. BROWN, was the appellant in the court below and the defendant in the trial court. The Respondent, THE STATE OF FLORIDA, was the appellee in the district court and the prosecution in the trial court.

The Appendix to the Petitioner's Brief on Jurisdiction will be referred to by the symbol "1A" and the page number assigned by the Petitioner. The Appendix to this brief will be designated by the symbol "2A" and the page number assigned.

All emphasis is supplied unless otherwise indicated.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The Petitioner's Statement of the Case and Facts relies upon documents not properly before this court and contains a number of material omissions. Therefore, it must be rejected by the Respondent whose Statement of the Case and Facts follows:

The opinion of the district court upon which conflict is asserted states, in its entirety;

We affirm the judgments of conviction on the authority of Clark v. State, Nos. 88-1576 & 88-1274 (Fla. 3d DCA Nov. 21, 1989). However, because

the trial court failed to give written reasons for departing from the sentencing guidelines, we remand this cause for resentencing. Padgett v. State, 534 So.2d 1246 (Fla. 3d DCA 1988).

Affirmed in part; remanded in part.

(1A.; pg. 1)

The order on the Petitioner's Motion for Rehearing states, in its entirety;

On remand the trial court is to correct the judgment to reflect that the conviction is for attempted armed robbery without a firearm--a third-degree felony.

Otherwise the motion for rehearing is denied.

(1A.; pg. 10).

The Respondent reserves the right to set forth additional facts in the argument portion of this brief, as appropriate.

ISSUE PRESENTED BY REVIEW

WHETHER THE DECISION OF THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS IS NOT IN EXPRESS AND DIRECT CONFLICT WITH POPE V. STATE, 15 F.L.W. 243 (FLA. APRIL 26, 1990). (RESTATED)

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The Petitioner has failed to even allege that there is express and direct conflict, as the rule concerned requires, and cannot do so, because the district court's opinion does not either expressly or directly conflict with <u>Pope v. State</u>, 15 F.L.W. 243 (Fla. April 26, 1990).

However, not only has the Petitioner had to extensively refer to and analyze constitutionally irrelevant material to allege even a bare conflict, but he has omitted the fact that he never properly raised the issue concerned herein before the district court, at all. The first time the <u>Pope</u> argument was ever made in the district court was on rehearing, a time when no new argument or issue could properly even be considered by the court.

The Petitioner has failed to properly establish jurisdiction in this court and, therefore, such jurisdiction should be denied.

ARGUMENT

THE DECISION OF THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS IS NOT IN EXPRESS AND DIRECT CONFLICT WITH POPE V. STATE, 15 F.L.W. 243 (FLA. APRIL 26, 1990). (RESTATED)

The Petitioner cannot properly assert jurisdiction in His first problem is that Rule 9.030(a)(A)(iv), Fla.R.App.P. requires him to demonstrate that the decisions concerned, "expressly and directly conflict with a decision of another district court of appeal or of the Supreme Court on the same question of law (emphasis added). The Petitioner has not even alleged that he can meet the required burden, nor can he, given that there is not one word in the decision of the third district that expressly or directly conflicts with Pope v. State, 15 F.L.W. 243 (Fla. April 26, 1990). Indeed, the Petitioner has been required to go far beyond the four corners of the decision to even allege that a bare conflict exists, improperly alleging facts totally irrelevant to jurisdictional issue, as this court has held. Reaves v. State, 485 So.2d 829 (Fla. 1986).

However, even if this were not the case, the Petitioner has failed to mention that he never properly raised the issue concerned herein before the third district, at all.

Petitioner, in his initial brief, asked that the cause be remanded for resentencing pursuant to <u>Padgett v. State</u>, 534 So.2d 1246 (Fla. 3d DCA 1989). [without maintaining that the resentencing should be within the guidelines] (2A., pg. 1). The State conceded and, in his reply brief, the Petitioner pointed this out and, again, requested that the action be remanded for resentencing without requesting that the resentencing be within the guidelines. (2A., pg. 2).

The Third District gave the Petitioner precisely what he asked for on this issue, virtually tracking the language of his initial brief. (1A., pg. 1; 2A., pg. 1).

Then, in his Motion for Rehearing, the Petitioner, <u>for</u> the first time, requested that the resentencing be within the guidelines. (1A., pg. 5). Although he had previously filed a notice of supplemental authority citing <u>Ree v. State</u>, 14 F.L.W. 565 (Fla. Nov. 16, 1989) (1A., pg. 5), he had not amended or supplemented his brief or asked for any additional remedy. Thus, the Petitioner chose to present a new argument and a request for a new remedy for the first time on rehearing.

However, it is axiomatic that a party cannot present arguments in a motion for rehearing that it has not previously presented to the court. <u>Sag Harbour Marine</u>, <u>Inc. v. Fickett</u>, 484 So.2d 1250 (Fla. 1st DCA 1986), <u>rev. denied</u>, 494 So.2d 1150

(Fla. 1986). Issues raised for the first time on rehearing may not be considered by the court. Price Wise Buying Group v. Nuzum, 343 So.2d 115, 117 (Fla. 1st DCA 1977); See, Polyglycoat Corp. v. Hirsch Distributors, Inc., 442 So.2d 958, 960 (Fla. 4th DCA 1984); rev. dismissed, 451 So.2d 848 (Fla. 1984); Warren v. City of Leesburg, 203 So.2d 522, 526 (Fla. 2d DCA 1967).

The Petitioner has failed, therefore, to demonstrate any proper basis for conflict jurisdiction.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing reasons and authorities, this court should decline to accept jurisdiction in this action.